
 
Franklin City Council Agenda 

November 25, 2024  
Council Chambers 

207 West Second Avenue 
Franklin, Virginia 23851 

 
7:00 P.M.  

Regular Meeting 

CALL TO ORDER. . . . . .  .  MAYOR ROBERT L. CUTCHINS 
PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES. . . .   MAYOR ROBERT L. CUTCHINS 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
CITIZEN’S TIME  (3 MINUTES) 
AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA 
 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of October 28, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
 

2. OLD/NEW BUSINESS 
Council Comments 
 

3. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
A. Resolution Endorsing the City’s 2025 General Assembly Legislative Package 
B. Small Business Saturday Proclamation #2024-21 

 
4. COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTS ON BOARDS/COMMISSIONS 

Council Appointment: DSS Advisory Board 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

**Agenda subject to change 



 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes October 28, 2024  

Call to order 

The Franklin City Council held its regular City Council meeting on October 28, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
City Council Chambers. 

Council Members in Attendance: Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, Mayor; Wynndolyn Copeland, Vice-Mayor; 
Councilman Gregory McLemore;  Councilman Mark Kitchen; Councilman Linwood Johnson; 
Councilwoman Jessica Banks. 

Council Members not in Attendance: Councilman Ray Smith 

Staff in Attendance: Rosylen Oglesby, City Manager, Heather Lockerman, City Attorney 

Other Staff in Attendance: Deputy Robert Porti; Matthew Jezierski, Director of IT; A’Risha Jones, 
Director of Tourism. 

Citizen’s Time 

Mr. Ronnie McClenny of 901 Craig Drive, Suffolk, Virginia, addressed Council regarding the 
assessed value of his property and community development requirement for signs to be posted on 
project site. 

Ms. Rachel Blow of 206 Cobb Street, Franklin, Virginia, addressed Council regarding 
basketball goals sitting out in the street and children shooting play guns that can hurt people. 

Mr. Gary Cross of the Black Creek area in Southampton County, Virginia, addressed 
Council as the Chairman of the Chowan Basin Soil & Water Conservation asking for consideration to 
enter into a Memorandum of Agreement to join the district with no expense to the city in an effort to 
allow landowners to apply for cost share funding.  

Amendments to Agenda 

No amendments were made to the agenda. 

Introduction of New Employees 

Mayor Cutchins introduced City Manager Rosylen Oglesby and the City Manager shared her activities 
over this past month.  

City Manager introduced the Finance Director, Constance Barnes and Ms. Barnes shared information 
about herself. 

Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of September 23, 2024 regular meeting minutes.  

Mayor Robert Cutchins asked if there were any corrections or additions for the September 23rd minutes.  



2 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

None were heard. 

Councilman Mark Kitchen made a motion to approve the minutes with a second from Councilman 
Linwood Johnson.   

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows:  

Councilman Linwood Johnson   Aye 

Councilman Mark Kitchen   Aye 

Councilwoman Jessica Banks   Aye 

Vice-Mayor Wynndolyn Copeland  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins    Aye  

Councilman Ray Smith                Absent 

Councilman Gregory McLemore  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins affirmed the motion carried.   

Old/New Business  

A. Council Comments 

Councilman Linwood Johnson stated that he was happy for the City Manager and Finance Director 
being here and look forward to moving forward. 

Councilman Mark Kitchen stated that he was pleased with the Friday updates that has been changed-
it’s more informative and detailed.  

Councilwoman Jessica Banks welcomed the City Manager and Finance Director. 

Vice-Mayor Wynndolyn Copeland provided an update on activities within Ward 5. 

Councilman Gregory McLemore welcomed the City Manager and expressed his appreciation for her 
meeting with council members on a regularly to express concerns, as well as her making necessary 
changes for qualified staff. Councilman McLemore also shared an update on the legislative caucus 
meeting that was held today attending the Hampton Road Planning District meetings with the City 
Manager.  

Mayor Bobby Cutchins expressed his pleasure in meeting with the City Manager and wished her the 
best. Mayor Cutchins also shared information in reference to his attendance at the Arbor Day 
Ceremony. 

Department Items 

A. City Manager’s Report  



3 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

City Manager presented the 2025 proposed legislative package for council’s review and feedback at the 
next meeting. 

 



4 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

 

Councilman McLemore made comments in reference to inviting our elected officials to address council. 

City Manager provided information in reference to a planned scheduled meeting regarding the issuance 
of General Obligation Bonds/Notes related to certain capital projects not to exceed $14.3 million. City 
Manager shared that the presentation will be held on November 25th and the public hearing, 
consideration, and adoption scheduled for December 9th. 

Councilman McLemore asked what happens once the estimates come in and it exceeds the $14.3 
million. City Manager explained the supplemental funding allocated for some of these capital projects. 

Councilman Johnson shared that he spoke with Jamie Weist, project consultant, and he expressed that 
he thinks we can stay under that cost as long as the material costs doesn’t rise. 

City Manager provided an update on certain projects taking place throughout the community. 



5 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

 

City Manager also provided an update on staff developing a plant to cleanup city ditches. 

Vice-Mayor Copeland asked if the rodent issue was addressed in the report for Dorchester Apartments. 
City Manager stated no. 

Councilman McLemore asked if our inspectors have went in to complete an inspection of the 
apartments and expressed his concern that we are still without a plan for owners of multiple dwellings 
to address them expeditiously when things like this happen. 

City Manager explained that HUD hired an inspector and they provided their findings to the owner, but 
not the city. City Manager also cautioned council about this being private property where the city has no 
right to go on the property without being invited to go on the property. City Manager also shared that 
we have no control over whether or not they do any improvements to this property because those things 
are not within our scope. 

Councilman McLemore made comments in reference to previous conversations about this issue and the 
city creating an ordinance to address issues like this. 



6 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

There was further discussion in reference to how the city can address this and for future issues such as 
this. 

Mayor Cutchins asked the City Manager to come back with recommendations for the council. 

City Manager provided an update on key staffing and organizational changes. 

Council/Staff Reports on Boards/Commissions 

Councilman Johnson provided a report from the Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority and from 
the Virginia Municipal League in reference to the legislative information at their seat as well as 
provided by the City Manager. 

A. Council Appointment: Hampton Road Transportation Planning Organization (HRTPO)-
Alternate 

Mayor Cutchins stated there was a vacancy on the HRTPO for an alternate council member appointee. 

Councilman McLemore volunteered to serve as the alternate. 

A motion was made by Councilman Kitchen and seconded by Councilman Johnson to appoint 
Councilman McLemore as the alternate to the Hampton Roads Transportation Planning Organization. 

The motion carried with a vote: 6-0 

The vote was as follows: 

Councilman Linwood Johnson  Aye 

Councilman Mark Kitchen   Aye 

Councilwoman Jessica Banks   Aye 

Vice-Mayor Wynndolyn Copeland  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins   Aye 

Councilman Ray Smith   Absent 

Councilman Gregory McLemore  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins stated the motion carried. 

Councilman McLemore provided a report from his discussion with the Chair of the Hampton Road 
Planning Development Commission in reference to light rail planning being done elsewhere and the 
need for it to be in the City of Franklin. 

Councilman Johnson made comments in agreeance. 

Councilman Mark Kitchen left the meeting at 7: 53 p.m. 

Mayor Bobby Cutchins entertained a motion to go into Closed Session.  



7 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

Closed Session 

Vice-Mayor Wynndolyn Copeland moved that the City of Franklin, Virginia City Council adjourn into 
closed meeting at 8:00 PM. pursuant to Virginia Code subsection 2.2-3711 A.29 for the purpose of 
discussing the award of a public contract involving the expenditure of public funds., where discussion in 
an open session would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the City, 
specifically regarding the procurement of legal services. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Johnson. 

Councilman Mark Kitchen returned to the meeting at 7:56 p.m. 

The motion carried with a vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows:  

Councilman Linwood Johnson   Aye 

Councilman Mark Kitchen   Aye 

Councilwoman Jessica Banks   Aye 

Vice-Mayor Wynndolyn Copeland  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins    Aye 

Councilman Ray Smith    Absent 

Councilman Gregory McLemore  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins stated the motion carried. 

Motion Upon Return to Open Session at 8:10 p.m  

Councilman Mark Kitchen moved that each council member certify that, to the best of his or her 
knowledge: I hereby move that each council member certify that, to the best of his or her knowledge: 

(i) Only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting 
requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, and 
 

(ii) Only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by 
which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or 
considered in the closed meeting just concluded. 

The motion was seconded by Councilman Linwood Johnson.  

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows:  

Councilman Linwood Johnson   Aye 

Councilman Mark Kitchen   Aye 



8 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | October 28, 2024 

Councilwoman Jessica Banks   Aye  

Vice-Mayor Wynndolyn Copeland  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins    Aye 

Councilman Ray Smith    Absent 

Councilman Gregory McLemore  Aye 

Mayor Bobby Cutchins stated the motion carried.  

Mayor Bobby Cutchins opened the following for council: 

Any member of the public body who believes that there was a departure from the requirements of clauses 
(i) and (ii), shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the departure that, in his or her 
judgement, has taken place. The statement shall be recorded in the minutes of the public body. 

None were heard. 

Adjournment  

Councilman Johnson made a motion to adjourn the October 28, 2024 City Council Meeting at 8:15 p.m. 
with a second from Councilman Mark Kitchen.   

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows:  

Councilman Linwood Johnson   Aye 

Councilman Mark Kitchen   Aye 

Councilwoman Jessica Banks   Aye 

Vice-Mayor Wynndolyn Copeland  Aye 

Mayor Robert Cutchins    Aye 

Councilman Ray Smith    Absent  

Councilman Gregory McLemore  Aye 

Mayor Bobby Cutchins stated the meeting stands adjourned.  

 

 

               
Mayor        Deputy Clerk to City Council 





RESOLUTION 2024-25 
 

A RESOLUTION ENDORSING THE CITY'S 2025 GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Virginia General Assembly deals with a broad range of issues that 
affect local government both directly and indirectly; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Franklin has certain concerns that deal with both Franklin 

specifically and local governments in general; and 
 
WHEREAS, these concerns need to be made known to Franklin's General Assembly 

delegation so that they may be transmitted for consideration by the Legislature. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Franklin, 

Virginia, that it hereby endorses the positions listed on Exhibit A hereto for inclusion in the 
Legislative Package for the 2025 General Assembly session. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is directed to provide a copy of 

this Resolution and the 2025 Legislative Package to each City's General Assembly delegation 
member. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager and/or her designee(s) are 

hereby authorized and directed to provide necessary input and clarification during the 2025 
Virginia General Assembly session and to carry out other activities as needed to assist in 
attaining the goals and objectives contained in the City's 2025 Legislative Package. 

 
ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Franklin, Virginia, at a meeting held on 

November 25, 2024. 
 

_________________________________ 

Robert “Bobby” Cutchins 

Mayor of the City of Franklin 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________ 
City Clerk  



 
Exhibit A 

 
2025 Legislative Package 

 
 

1. Support for Public Education - A General Assembly joint subcommittee addresses 
recommendations from the 2023 Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission (JLARC) 
report on the Standards of Quality (SOQ). JLARC’s report recommendations about 
updating the SOQ in the short and long term included items such as eliminating the 
support cap and providing additional staff and funding for staff. VML is encouraging the 
General Assembly to implement expeditiously and fund the JLARC recommendations to 
more equitably share education costs with local government and ensure students' overall 
success across the Commonwealth. 

 
• Recommendation: The City’s position should be to support the priority. If the General 

Assembly implements and funds the JLARC recommendations, it could mean a more 
equitable share of education costs with local governments and provide much-needed 
support to address school construction and renovation needs in communities, 
estimated at $25 billion statewide. The City should oppose any efforts that limit local 
authority or divert state funds from the public education system. 

 
2. State Assistance to Local Police Departments (HB 599) - Almost 70 percent of 

Virginians live in communities served by police departments. The State created a financial 
assistance program to local police departments (HB 599) when it imposed an annexation 
moratorium on cities more than 30 years ago. It has increasingly deemphasized this 
funding obligation as a priority but has never compromised on the annexation moratorium. 
Although the Code of Virginia sets out a distribution formula for calculating the amounts 
for eligible localities, in recent years the General Assembly has instead specified in the 
Appropriations Act that localities’ allocations in a given fiscal year are to be based on a 
standard, across-the-board percentage increase or decrease from the previous fiscal 
year’s allocations. The distribution formula has, in effect, been superseded during those 
years by the instructions in the Appropriations Act.  Funds are distributed to eligible 
localities in quarterly payments via electronic funds transfers. 

 
o Recommendation: The City should support the calling for the state to honor 

its commitment to fund public safety as stipulated in the Code of Virginia. For 
2025, the City’s distribution is $538,864, according to the Virginia Department 
of Criminal Justice Services’ website. 

 
3. Land Use Control - Localities must maintain control of local land use decisions.  Neither 

the state nor the federal government should usurp or pre-empt a locality’s authority to 
make such decisions, nor should they impose requirements that weaken planning and 
land use functions.  This includes all types of housing, including but not limited to short-
term rentals. 

 



o Recommendation: The city’s position should be to oppose any regulations 
that limit local land use decisions. The City should support decisions related to 
local government authority to promote affordable and mixed-income housing 
and the required infrastructure to facilitate in-fill development, redevelopment, 
and mixing of uses, with the mandate fully funded by the state.  

 
4. Provide adequate funding through the Community Flood Preparedness Fund 

(CFPF) to meet the flood preparedness and resilience needs – The Hampton Roads 
Region has received CFPF funding to assist with the costs of completing vulnerability 
assessments and develop action-oriented approaches to bolster flood preparedness and 
increase resilience. 

 
o Recommendation: The City’s position should be to support the priority. This 

funding could be tapped into to assist the City with preparing the address for 
flood-related events. 

 
5. Develop a state funding program to provide the non-federal match for federal grants 

to support large-scale flood relief projects – A substantial amount of federal funds is 
available for flood mitigation efforts; however, the City is not in a position to access these 
resources without providing the non-federal local match. Through HRPDC, regional 
localities request that the state develop a funding program to contribute to the required 
non-federal share.  

 
o Recommendation: The City’s position should be to support the priority. 

 
 

 
Position Statements 

 
1. Housing - support policy decisions that provide housing opportunities for all Hampton 

Roads residents, support the recommendations and strategies produced by regional 
housing assessment and support the continuation of funding for the Housing Trust Fund. 
 

2. Economic Development Site Readiness - support state funding programs and policies 
that assist local governments with preparing shovel-ready economic development sites. 

 
3. Reject Unfunded Mandates - ask that the General Assembly oppose any proposals that 

impose new unfunded mandates and fiscal responsibilities on local governments. 
 

4. Support actions that increase access to affordable and qualified childcare - the rising 
cost of childcare is significantly impacting our region's families. These concerns are shared 
by military leadership, which has identified affordable childcare as a critical priority. 

 
 

 





 

Small Business Saturday  
Proclamation # 2024-21 

 
WHEREAS, the Government of City of Franklin, Virginia, celebrates our local small businesses 
and the contributions they make to our local economy and community; and 

WHEREAS, according to the United States Small Business Administration, there are more than 33 
million small businesses in the United States, small businesses represent 99.7% of firms with paid 
employees, small businesses are responsible for 62% of net new jobs created since 1995, and small 
businesses employ 46.8% of the employees in the private sector in the United States; and 

WHEREAS, 79% of consumers understand the importance of supporting the small businesses in 
their community on Small Business Saturday®, 70% report the day makes them want to encourage 
others to Shop Small®, independently-owned retailers, and 66% report that the day makes them 
want to Shop Small all year long; and 

WHEREAS, 58% of shoppers reported they shopped online with a small business and 55% 
reported they dined or ordered takeout from a small restaurant, bar, or café on Small Business 
Saturday in 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin supports our local businesses that create jobs, boost our local 
economy, and preserve our communities; and 

WHEREAS, advocacy groups, as well as public and private organizations, across the country have 
endorsed the Saturday after Thanksgiving as Small Business Saturday. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Mayor Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, and the members 
of the City of Franklin Council, urge the residents of our community, and communities across the 
Country, to support small businesses and merchants on Small Business Saturday and throughout the 
year.  

FURTHER, LET IT BE RESOLVED THAT, I, Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, Mayor of the City 
of Franklin, Virginia, do hereby proclaim, November 30, 2024, as 

SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY 

 

Signed this 25th day of November 2024.  
 
_______________________________ 
Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, Mayor 
City of Franklin, Virginia 














	11-25-2024 Agenda Updated CM
	10-28-2024 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	Call to order
	Amendments to Agenda
	Introduction of New Employees
	Consent Agenda
	Old/New Business
	Department Items
	Council/Staff Reports on Boards/Commissions

	Legislative Package CMR Signed
	2025 Resolution Legislative Package 2024-25 Formatted
	2025 Proposed Legislative Package_Draft as of October 25 2024
	Small Business Saturday Proclamation CMR Signed
	Proclamation 2024-21 Small Business Saturday
	DSS Advisory Board Appointment

